



Species at Risk Act | January 2017

ISSN: 1713-0948 Cat. No.: En1-36E-PDF

Unless otherwise specified, you may not reproduce materials in this publication, in whole or in part, for the purposes of commercial redistribution without prior written permission from Environment and Climate Change Canada's copyright administrator. To obtain permission to reproduce Government of Canada materials for commercial purposes, apply for Crown Copyright Clearance by contacting:

Environment and Climate Change Canada Public Inquiries Centre 7th Floor, Fontaine Building 200 Sacré-Coeur Boulevard Gatineau QC K1A 0H3 Telephone: 819-997-2800

Toll Free: 1-800-668-6767 (in Canada only)

Email: ec.enviroinfo.ec@canada.ca

Cover photos:

Nuttall's Sheep Moth @ Merrill Peterson

© Her Majesty the Queen in Right of Canada, represented by the Minister of Environment and Climate Change, 2017

Aussi disponible en français

CONSULTATION ON AMENDING THE LIST OF SPECIES UNDER THE **SPECIES AT RISK ACT**TERRESTRIAL SPECIES

Species at Risk Act | January 2017

Please submit your comments by

May 11, 2017, for terrestrial species undergoing normal consultations

and by

October 11, 2017, for terrestrial species undergoing extended consultations.

For a description of the consultation paths these species will undergo, please see:

http://www.registrelep-sararegistry.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=8D3AE2E5-1

Please email your comments to the Species at Risk Public Registry at:

ec.registrelep-sararegistry.ec@canada.ca

Comments may also be mailed to:
Director General, Assessment and Regulatory Affairs
Canadian Wildlife Service
Environment and Climate Change Canada
Ottawa ON K1A 0H3

For more information on the *Species at Risk Act*, please visit the Species at Risk Public Registry at: www.registrelep-sararegistry.gc.ca

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ADDITION OF SPECIES TO THE SPECIES AT RISK ACT	4
The Species at Risk Act and the List of Wildlife Species at Risk	4
COSEWIC and the assessment process for identifying species at risk	
Terms used to define the degree of risk to a species	
Terrestrial and aquatic species eligible for Schedule 1 amendments	
Comments solicited on the proposed amendment of Schedule 1	
Questions to guide your comments	
THE SPECIES AT RISK ACT LISTING PROCESS AND CONSULTATION	6
The purpose of consultations on amendments to the List	6
The species listing process under SARA	6
Figure 1: The species listing process under SARA	7
Legislative context of the consultations: the Minister's recommendation	
to the Governor in Council	8
The Minister of the Environment's response to the COSEWIC assessment:	
the response statement	8
Normal and extended consultation periods	8
Who is consulted, and how	8
Role and impact of public consultations in the listing process	9
SIGNIFICANCE OF THE ADDITION OF A SPECIES TO SCHEDULE 1	10
Protection for listed Extirpated, Endangered and Threatened species	10
Recovery strategies and action plans for Extirpated, Endangered and Threatened species	10
Permits and agreements	11
Protection for listed species of Special Concern	11
Management plans for species of Special Concern	11
THE LIST OF SPECIES ELIGIBLE FOR AN AMENDMENT TO SCHEDULE 1	12
Status of the recently assessed species and consultation paths	12
Providing comments	12
Table 1: Terrestrial species recently assessed by COSEWIC eligible for addition to	
Schedule 1 or reclassification	13
Table 2: Terrestrial species recently reassessed by COSEWIC	
(no consultations – species status confirmation)	14
THE COSEWIC SUMMARIES OF TERRESTRIAL SPECIES ELIGIBLE	
FOR ADDITION OR RECLASSIFICATION ON SCHEDULE 1	15
CLOSSARV	16

ADDITION OF SPECIES TO THE SPECIES AT RISK ACT

The Species at Risk Act and the List of Wildlife Species at Risk

The Government of Canada is committed to preventing the disappearance of wildlife species at risk from our lands. As part of its strategy for realizing that commitment, on June 5, 2003, the Government of Canada proclaimed the Species at Risk Act (SARA). Attached to the Act is Schedule 1, the list of the species provided for under SARA, also called the List of Wildlife Species at Risk. Extirpated, Endangered and Threatened species on Schedule 1 benefit from the protection afforded by the prohibitions and from recovery planning requirements under SARA. Special Concern species benefit from its management planning requirements. Schedule 1 has grown from the original 233 to 521 wildlife species at risk. In 2016, on the recommendation of the Minister of the Environment, the Governor in Council approved listing proposals for 44 wildlife species. It is proposed that 23 species be added to Schedule 1, 18 be reclassified or have a change made to how they are defined (two wildlife species are being split into four), one species be removed from Schedule 1, and another two species not be added. Listing proposals were published in Canada Gazette, Part I for a 30-day public comment period and final listing decisions for all 44 species are expected in the first half of 2017.

The complete list of species currently on Schedule 1 can be viewed at: www.registrelep-sararegistry. gc.ca/species/schedules_e.cfm?id=1

Species become eligible for addition to Schedule 1 once they have been assessed as being at risk by the Committee on the Status of Endangered Wildlife in Canada (COSEWIC). The decision to add a species to Schedule 1 is made by the Governor in Council further to a recommendation from the Minister of the Environment. The Governor in Council is the formal executive body that gives legal effect to decisions that then have the force of law.

COSEWIC and the assessment process for identifying species at risk

COSEWIC is recognized under SARA as the authority for assessing the status of wildlife species at risk. COSEWIC comprises experts on wildlife species at risk. Its members have backgrounds in the fields of biology, ecology, genetics, Indigenous traditional knowledge and other relevant fields. They come from various communities, including academia, Indigenous organizations, governments and non-governmental organizations.

COSEWIC gives priority to those species more likely to become extinct, and then commissions a status report for the evaluation of the species' status. To be accepted, status reports must be peer-reviewed and approved by a subcommittee of species specialists. In special circumstances, assessments can be done on an emergency basis. When the status report is complete, COSEWIC meets to examine it and discuss the species. COSEWIC then determines whether the species is at risk, and, if so, it then assesses the level of risk and assigns a conservation status.

Terms used to define the degree of risk to a species

The conservation status defines the degree of risk to a species. The terms used under SARA are Extirpated, Endangered, Threatened and Special Concern. Extirpated species are wildlife species that no longer occur in the wild in Canada but still exist elsewhere. Endangered species are wildlife species that are likely to soon become Extirpated or extinct. Threatened species are likely to become Endangered if nothing is done to reverse the factors leading to their extirpation or extinction. The term Special Concern is used for wildlife species that may become Threatened or Endangered due to a combination of biological characteristics and threats. Once COSEWIC has assessed a species as Extirpated, Endangered, Threatened or Special Concern, it is eligible for inclusion on Schedule 1.

For more information on COSEWIC, visit: www.cosewic.gc.ca

On **October 13, 2016**, COSEWIC sent to the Minister of the Environment its newest assessments of species at risk. Environment and Climate Change Canada is now consulting on changes to Schedule 1 to reflect these new designations for these terrestrial species. To see the list of the terrestrial species and their status, please refer to tables 1 and 2.

Terrestrial and aquatic species eligible for Schedule 1 amendments

The Minister of Fisheries and Oceans conducts separate consultations for the aquatic species. For more information on the consultations for aquatic species, visit the Fisheries and Oceans Canada website at www.dfo-mpo.gc.ca.

The Minister of the Environment is conducting the consultations for all other species at risk.

Approximately 50% of the recently assessed terrestrial species at risk also occur in national parks or other lands administered by Parks Canada; Parks Canada shares responsibility for these species with Environment and Climate Change Canada.

Comments solicited on the proposed amendment of Schedule 1

The conservation of wildlife is a joint legal responsibility: one that is shared among the governments of Canada. But biodiversity will not be conserved by governments that act alone. The best way to secure the survival of species at risk and their habitats is through the active participation of all those concerned. SARA recognizes this, and that all Indigenous peoples and Canadians have a role to play in preventing the disappearance of wildlife species from our lands. The Government of Canada is inviting and encouraging you to become involved. One way that you can do so is by sharing your comments concerning the addition or reclassification of these terrestrial species.

Your comments are considered in relation to the potential consequences of whether or not a species is included on Schedule 1, and they are then used to inform the drafting of the Minister's proposed listing recommendations for each of these species.

Questions to guide your comments

The following questions are intended to assist you in providing comments on the proposed amendments to the List of Wildlife Species at Risk (see Table 1 for the list of species under consultation). They are not limiting, and any other comments you may have are welcome. We also encourage you to share descriptions and estimates of costs or benefits to you or your organization where possible, as well as to propose actions that could be taken for the conservation of these species.

Respondent information

Are you responding as an individual or representing a community, business or organization (please specify)?

Species benefits to people or to the ecosystem

Do any or all of the species provide benefits to you or to Canada's ecosystems? If yes, explain how. What is the estimated value of these benefits? Values do not need to be monetary.

For example:

- Do any or all of the species provide benefits by supporting your livelihood, for example, through harvesting, subsistence or medicine?
- Do any or all of the species provide cultural or spiritual benefits, for example, recreation, sense of place or tradition? If yes, how?
- Do any or all of the species provide environmental benefits, for example, pollination, pest control or flood control? If yes, how?

Impact of your activities and mitigation

- Based on the maps provided in this document, do any of your current or planned activities overlap with any or all of the species ranges or occurrences?
- Do any of your current or planned activities have the potential to kill, harm or harass any or all of the species, or damage or destroy their residence(s)? If yes, what are these activities, and how are they affecting the concerned species?
- What are you doing or what could you do to avoid killing, harming or harassing the species, or damaging or destroying their residence(s)?

Impacts of amending the List of Wildlife Species at Risk

Based on what you know about SARA and the information presented in this document, do you think that amending the List of Wildlife Species at Risk with the proposed listing (Table 1) would have no impact, a positive impact or a negative impact on your activities or the species? Please provide as much detail as possible.

For example:

- If any of your activities impact a species or its residence, would you have to avoid or adjust these activities to mitigate their impact? What would be the implications of such avoidance or mitigation?
- Do you think that listing the species would have cultural or social cost or benefits to you, your community or your organization?
- Do you think that listing the species would have economic costs or benefits to you, your community or your organization?
- Do you think that listing the species would have costs or benefits to the environment or Canada's ecosystems?

Additional information for small businesses

If you are responding for a **small business**, please provide the following details to help Environment and Climate Change Canada gather information to contribute to the required Small Business Lens analysis that forms part of the Regulatory Impact Analysis Statement that will accompany any future listing recommendation.

- 1. Are you an enterprise that operates in Canada?
- 2. Do you engage in commercial activities related to the supply of services or property (which includes goods)?
- 3. Are you an organization that engages in activities for a public purpose (e.g., social welfare or civic improvement), such as a provincial or municipal government, school, college/university, hospital or charity?
- 4. Is your enterprise owned by a First Nations community?
- 5. How many employees do you have?
 - 0-99
 - 100 or more

- 6. What was your annual gross revenue in the last year?
 - Less than \$30,000
 - Between \$30,000 and \$5 million
 - More than \$5 million

To ensure that your comments are considered in time, they should be submitted before the following deadlines.

For terrestrial species undergoing normal consultations, comments should be submitted by May 11, 2017.

For terrestrial species undergoing extended consultations, comments should be submitted by **October 11, 2017**.

To find out which consultation paths these species will undergo (extended or normal), please see: www.registrelep-sararegistry.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=8D3AE2E5-1

Comments received by these deadlines will be considered in the development of the listing proposal.

Please email your comments to the Species at Risk Public Registry at:

ec.registrelep-sararegistry.ec@canada.ca

By regular mail, please address your comments to:

Director General, Assessment and Regulatory Affairs

Canadian Wildlife Service Environment and Climate Change Canada Ottawa ON K1A 0H3

THE SPECIES AT RISK ACT LISTING PROCESS AND CONSULTATION

The addition of a wildlife species at risk to Schedule 1 of SARA facilitates providing for its protection and conservation. To be effective, the listing process must be transparent and open. The species listing process under SARA is summarized in Figure 1.

The purpose of consultations on amendments to the List

When COSEWIC assesses a wildlife species, it does so solely on the basis of the best available information relevant to the biological status of the species. COSEWIC then submits the assessment to the Minister of the Environment, who considers

Figure 1: The species listing process under SARA

The Minister of the Environment receives species assessments from COSEWIC at least once per year.

The competent departments undertake internal review to determine the extent of public consultation and socio-economic analysis necessary to inform the listing decision.

Within 90 days of receipt of the species assessments prepared by COSEWIC, the Minister of the Environment publishes a response statement on the SARA Public Registry that indicates how he or she intends to respond to the assessment and, to the extent possible, provides timelines for action.

Where appropriate, the competent departments undertake consultations and any other relevant analysis needed to prepare the advice for the Minister of the Environment.

The Minister of the Environment forwards the assessment to the Governor in Council for receipt. This generally occurs within three months of posting the response statement, unless further consultation is necessary.

Within nine months of receiving the assessment, the Governor in Council, on the recommendation of the Minister of the Environment, may decide whether or not to list the species under Schedule 1 of SARA or refer the assessment back to COSEWIC for further information or consideration.

Once a species is added to Schedule 1, it benefits from the applicable provisions of SARA.

it when making the listing recommendation to the Governor in Council. The purpose of these consultations is to provide the Minister with a better understanding of the potential social and economic impacts of the proposed change to the List of Wildlife Species at Risk, and of the potential consequences of not adding a species to the List.

Legislative context of the consultations: the Minister's recommendation to the Governor in Council

The comments collected during the consultations inform the Governor in Council's consideration of the Minister's recommendations for listing species at risk. The Minister must recommend one of three courses of action. These are for the Governor in Council to accept the species assessment and modify Schedule 1 accordingly, not to add the species to Schedule 1, or to refer the species assessment back to COSEWIC for its further consideration (Figure 1).

The Minister of the Environment's response to the COSEWIC assessment: the response statement

After COSEWIC has completed its assessment of a species, it provides it to the Minister of the Environment. The Minister of the Environment then has 90 days to post a response on the Species at Risk Public Registry, known as the response statement. The response statement provides information on the scope of any consultations and the timelines for action, to the extent possible. It identifies how long the consultations will be (whether they are "normal" or "extended") by stating when the Minister will forward the assessment to the Governor in Council. Consultations for a group of species are launched with the posting of their response statements.

Normal and extended consultation periods

Normal consultations meet the consultation needs for the listing of most species at risk. They usually take two to three months to complete, while extended consultations may take one year or more.

The extent of consultations needs to be proportional to the expected impact of a listing decision and the time that may be needed to consult. Under some circumstances, whether or not a

species will be included on Schedule 1 could have significant and widespread impacts on the activities of some groups of people. It is essential that such stakeholders have the opportunity to inform the pending decision and, to the extent possible, to provide input on its potential consequences and to share ideas on how best to approach threats to the species. A longer period may also be required to consult appropriately with some groups. For example, consultations can take longer for groups that meet infrequently but that must be engaged on several occasions. For such reasons, extended consultations may be undertaken.

For both normal and extended consultations, once they are complete, the Minister of the Environment forwards the species assessments to the Governor in Council for the government's formal receipt of the assessment. The Governor in Council then has nine months to come to a listing decision.

The consultation paths (normal or extended) for the terrestrial species listed in Table 1 will be announced when the Minister publishes the response statements. These will be posted by January 11, 2017, on the Species at Risk Public Registry at: www.registrelep-sararegistry.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=8D3AE2E5-1

No consultations will be undertaken for those species already on Schedule 1 and for which no change in status is being proposed (Table 2).

Who is consulted, and how

It is most important to consult with those who would be most affected by the proposed changes. There is protection that is immediately in place when a species that is Extirpated, Endangered or Threatened is added to Schedule 1 (for more details, see below, "Protection for listed Extirpated, Endangered and Threatened species"). This immediate protection does not apply to species of Special Concern. The nature of protection depends on the type of species, its conservation status, and where the species is found. Environment and Climate Change Canada takes this into account during the consultations; those who may be affected by the impacts of the automatic protections are contacted directly, others are encouraged to contribute through a variety of approaches.

Indigenous peoples known to have species at risk on their lands, for which changes to

Schedule 1 are being considered, will be contacted. Their engagement is of particular significance, acknowledging their role in the management of the extensive traditional territories and the reserve and settlement lands.

A Wildlife Management Board is a group that has been established under a land claims agreement and is authorized by the agreement to perform functions in respect of wildlife species. Some eligible species at risk are found on lands where existing land claims agreements apply that give specific authority to a Wildlife Management Board. In such cases, the Minister of the Environment will consult with the relevant board.

To encourage others to contribute and make the necessary information readily available, this document is distributed to known stakeholders and posted on the Species at Risk Public Registry. More extensive consultations may also be done through regional or community meetings or through a more targeted approach.

Environment and Climate Change Canada also sends notice of this consultation to identified concerned groups and individuals who have made their interests known. These include, but are not limited to, industries, resource users, landowners and environmental non-governmental organizations.

In most cases, it is difficult for Environment and Climate Change Canada to fully examine the potential impacts of recovery actions when species are being considered for listing. Recovery actions for terrestrial species usually have not yet been comprehensively defined at the time of listing, so their impact cannot be fully understood. Once they are better understood, efforts are made to minimize adverse social and economic impacts of listing and to maximize the benefits. SARA requires that recovery measures be prepared in consultation with those considered to be directly affected by them.

In addition to the public, Environment and Climate Change Canada consults on listing with the governments of the provinces and territories with lead responsibility for the conservation and management of these wildlife species. Environment and Climate Change Canada also consults with other federal departments and agencies.

Role and impact of public consultations in the listing process

The results of the public consultations are of great significance to informing the process of listing species at risk. Environment and Climate Change Canada carefully reviews the comments it receives to gain a better understanding of the benefits and costs of changing the List.

The comments are then used to inform the Regulatory Impact Analysis Statement (RIAS). The RIAS is a report that summarizes the impact of a proposed regulatory change. It includes a description of the proposed change and an analysis of its expected impact, which takes into account the results of the public consultations. In developing the RIAS, the Government of Canada recognizes that Canada's natural heritage is an integral part of our national identity and history and that wildlife in all its forms has value in and of itself. The Government of Canada also recognizes that the absence of full scientific certainty is not a reason to postpone decisions to protect the environment.

A draft Order (see Glossary) is then prepared, providing notice that a decision is being taken by the Governor in Council. The draft Order proposing to list all or some of the species under consideration is then published, along with the RIAS, in the *Canada Gazette*, Part I, for a comment period of 30 days.

The Minister of the Environment will take into consideration comments and any additional information received following publication of the draft Order and the RIAS in the Canada Gazette, Part I. The Minister then makes a final listing recommendation for each species to the Governor in Council. The Governor in Council next decides either to accept the species assessment and amend Schedule 1 accordingly; or not to add the species to Schedule 1; or to refer the species assessment back to COSEWIC for further information or consideration. The final decision is published in the Canada Gazette, Part II, and on the Species at Risk Public Registry. If the Governor in Council decides to list a species, it is at this point that it becomes legally included on Schedule 1.

SIGNIFICANCE OF THE ADDITION OF A SPECIES TO SCHEDULE 1

The protection that comes into effect following the addition of a species to Schedule 1 depends upon a number of factors. These include the species' status under SARA, the type of species and where it occurs.

Protection for listed Extirpated, Endangered and Threatened species

Responsibility for the conservation of wildlife is shared among the governments of Canada. SARA establishes legal protection for individuals as soon as a species is listed as Threatened, Endangered or Extirpated, and, in the case of Threatened and Endangered species, for their residences. This applies to species considered federal species or if they are found on federal land.

Federal species include migratory birds, as defined by the *Migratory Birds Convention Act, 1994*, and aquatic species covered by the *Fisheries Act*. Federal land means land that belongs to the federal government, and the internal waters and territorial sea of Canada. It also means land set apart for the use and benefit of a band under the *Indian Act* (such as reserves). In the territories, the protection for species at risk on federal lands applies only where they are on lands under the authority of the Minister of the Environment or the Parks Canada Agency.

Migratory birds are protected by the *Migratory Birds Regulations*, under the *Migratory Birds Convention Act, 1994*, which strictly prohibits the harming of migratory birds and the disturbance or destruction of their nests and eggs.

SARA's protection for individuals makes it an offence to kill, harm, harass, capture or take an individual of a species listed as Extirpated, Endangered or Threatened. It is also an offence to damage or destroy the residence of one or more individuals of an Endangered or Threatened species or an Extirpated species whose reintroduction has been recommended by a recovery strategy. The Act also makes it an offence to possess, collect, buy, sell

or trade an individual of a species that is Extirpated, Endangered or Threatened.

Species at risk that are neither aquatic nor protected under the Migratory Birds Convention Act, 1994, nor on federal lands, do not receive immediate protection upon listing under SARA. Instead, in most cases, the protection of terrestrial species on non-federal lands is the responsibility of the provinces and territories where they are found. The application of protections under SARA to a species at risk on non-federal lands requires that the Governor in Council make an order defining those lands. This can only occur when the Minister is of the opinion that the laws of the province or territory do not effectively protect the species. To put such an order in place, the Minister would then need to recommend the order be made to the Governor in Council. If the Governor in Council agrees to make the order, the prohibitions of SARA would then apply to the provincial or territorial lands specified by the order. The federal government would consult before making such an order.

Recovery strategies and action plans for Extirpated, Endangered and Threatened species

Recovery planning results in the development of recovery strategies and action plans for Extirpated, Endangered or Threatened species. It involves the different levels of government responsible for the management of the species, depending on what type of species it is and where it occurs. These include federal, provincial and territorial governments as well as Wildlife Management Boards. Recovery strategies and action plans are also prepared in cooperation with directly affected Indigenous organizations. Landowners and other stakeholders directly affected by the recovery strategy are consulted to the extent possible.

Recovery strategies must be prepared for all Extirpated, Endangered and Threatened species. They include measures to mitigate the known threats to the species and its habitat and set the population and distribution objectives. Other objectives can

be included, such as stewardship, to conserve the species, or education, to increase public awareness. Recovery strategies must include a statement of the time frame for the development of one or more action plans that will state the measures necessary to implement the recovery strategy. To the extent possible, recovery strategies must also identify the critical habitat of the species, which is the habitat necessary for the survival or recovery of the species. If there is not enough information available to identify critical habitat, the recovery strategy includes a schedule of studies required for its identification. This schedule outlines what must be done to obtain the necessary information and by when it needs to be done. In such cases, critical habitat can be identified in a subsequent action plan.

Proposed recovery strategies for newly listed species are posted on the Species at Risk Public Registry to provide for public review and comment. For Endangered species, proposed recovery strategies are posted within one year of their addition to Schedule 1, and for Threatened or Extirpated species, within two years.

Once a recovery strategy has been posted as final, one or more action plans based on the recovery strategy must then be prepared. These include measures to address threats and achieve the population and distribution objectives. Action plans also complete the identification of the critical habitat where necessary and, to the extent possible, state measures that are proposed to protect it.

Permits and agreements

For terrestrial species listed on SARA Schedule
1 as Extirpated, Endangered or Threatened, the
Minister of the Environment may authorize exceptions
to the Act's prohibitions, when and where they
apply. The Minister can enter into agreements
or issue permits only for one of three purposes:
for research, for conservation activities, or if the
effects to the species are incidental to the activity.
Research must relate to the conservation of a
species and be conducted by qualified scientists.
Conservation activities must benefit a listed species

or be required to enhance its chances of survival. All activities, including those that incidentally affect a listed species, its individuals, residences or critical habitat must also meet certain conditions. First, it must be established that all reasonable alternatives to the activity have been considered and the best solution has been adopted. Second, it must also be established that all feasible measures will be taken to minimize the impact of the activity on the listed species. And finally, it must be established that the activity will not jeopardize the survival or recovery of the species. Having issued a permit or agreement, the Minister must then include an explanation on the Species at Risk Public Registry of why the permit or agreement was issued.

Protection for listed species of Special Concern

While immediate protection under SARA for species listed as Extirpated, Endangered and Threatened does not apply to species listed as Special Concern, any existing protections and prohibitions, such as those provided by the *Migratory Birds Convention Act, 1994* or the *Canada National Parks Act*, continue to be in force.

Management plans for species of Special Concern

For species of Special Concern, management plans are to be prepared and made available on the Species at Risk Public Registry within three years of a species' addition to Schedule 1, allowing for public review and comment. Management plans include appropriate conservation measures for the species and for its habitat. They are prepared in cooperation with the jurisdictions responsible for the management of the species, including directly affected Wildlife Management Boards and Indigenous organizations. Landowners, lessees and others directly affected by a management plan will also be consulted to the extent possible.

THE LIST OF SPECIES ELIGIBLE FOR AN AMENDMENT TO SCHEDULE 1

Status of the recently assessed species and consultation paths

On October 13, 2016, COSEWIC submitted 16 assessments of species at risk to the Minister of the Environment for species that are eligible to be added to Schedule 1 of SARA. Ten of these are terrestrial species, and 6 are aquatic species. COSEWIC also reviewed the classification of species already on Schedule 1, in some cases changing their status. Eight terrestrial species are now being considered for down-listing on SARA (to a lower risk status) and 5 terrestrial species are now being considered for a higher risk status on SARA. One species, the Pygmy Pocket Moss, is being considered for removal from the list, as it was found to be not at risk in its latest assessment. In all, 24 terrestrial species that are eligible to be added to Schedule 1 or to have their current status on Schedule 1 changed are included in this consultation (Table 1).

COSEWIC also submitted the reviews of species already on Schedule 1, confirming their classification. Five of these reviews were for terrestrial species. These species are not included in the consultations because there is no regulatory change being proposed (Table 2).

For more information on the consultations for aquatic species, visit the Fisheries and Oceans Canada website at www.dfo-mpo.gc.ca.

Providing comments

The involvement of Canadians is integral to the listing process, as it is to the ultimate protection of Canadian wildlife. Your comments matter and are given serious consideration. Environment and Climate Change Canada will review all the comments that it receives by the deadlines provided below.

Comments for terrestrial species undergoing normal consultations must be received by **May 11**, **2017**.

Comments for terrestrial species undergoing extended consultations must be received by **October 11, 2017**.

Most species will be undergoing normal consultations. For the final consultation paths, please see

www.registrelep-sararegistry.gc.ca/default.asp?lang=En&n=8D3AE2E5-1

after January 11, 2017.

For more details on submitting comments, see the section "Comments solicited on the proposed amendment of Schedule 1" of this document.

Table 1: Terrestrial species recently assessed by COSEWIC eligible for addition to Schedule 1 or reclassification

Taxon	Species	Scientific Name	Range			
Species eligible for ac	ddition to Schedule 1 (10)					
Endangered (5)						
Arthropods	Hoptree Borer	Prays atomocella	ON			
Arthropods	Nine-spotted Lady Beetle	Coccinella novemnotata	BC AB SK MB ON QC			
Arthropods	Nuttall's Sheep Moth	Hemileuca nuttalli	BC			
Amphibians	Unisexual <i>Ambystoma</i> (Jefferson Salamander dependent population)	Ambystoma laterale - (2) jeffersonianum	ON			
Amphibians	Unisexual <i>Ambystoma</i> (Small-mouthed Salamander dependent population)	Ambystoma laterale - texanum	ON			
Threatened (2)						
Lichens	Wrinkled Shingle Lichen	Pannaria lurida	NB PE NS NL			
Arthropods	Lake Huron Grasshopper	Trimerotropis huroniana	ON			
Special Concern (3)						
Lichens	Mountain Crab-eye	Acroscyphus sphaerophoroides	BC			
Molluscs	Pygmy Slug	Kootenaia burkei	BC			
Molluscs	Sheathed Slug	Zacoleus idahoensis	BC			
Reclassifications: Up-l	ist (5)					
From Threatened to Er	ndangered (2)					
Vascular Plants	Colicroot	Aletris farinosa	ON			
Reptiles	Spiny Softshell	Apalone spinifera	ON QC			
From Special Concern to Threatened (3)						
Reptiles	Western Yellow-bellied Racer	Coluber constrictor mormon	BC			
Birds	Louisiana Waterthrush	Parkesia motacilla	ON QC			
Birds	McCown's Longspur	Rhynchophanes mccownii	AB SK			
Reclassifications: Down-list or Delist (9)						
From Endangered to Threatened (4)						
Vascular Plants	Bear's-foot Sanicle	Sanicula arctopoides	BC			
Molluscs	Blue-grey Taildropper	Prophysaon coeruleum	BC			
Birds	Red Crossbill percna subspecies	Loxia curvirostra percna	QC NL			
Mammals	Peary Caribou	Rangifer tarandus pearyi	NT NU			
From Threatened to Special Concern (3)						
Lichens	Flooded Jellyskin	Leptogium rivulare	MB ON QC			
Vascular Plants	Baikal Sedge	Carex sabulosa	YT			
Vascular Plants	Common Hoptree	Ptelea trifoliata	ON			
From Endangered to Special Concern (1)						
Reptiles	Lake Erie Watersnake	Nerodia sipedon insularum	ON			
From Special Concern to Not at Risk (1)						
Mosses	Pygmy Pocket Moss	Fissidens exilis	BC ON QC NS			

Table 2:

Terrestrial species recently reassessed by COSEWIC (no consultations – species status confirmation)

Taxon	Species	Scientific Name	Range		
Status Confirmations (5)					
Endangered (2)					
Arthropods	Eastern Persius Duskywing	Erynnis persius persius	ON		
Mammals	Pacific Water Shrew	Sorex bendirii	BC		
Threatened (2)					
Reptiles	Eastern Yellow-bellied Racer	Coluber constrictor flaviventris	AB SK		
Mammals	Gray Fox	Urocyon cinereoargenteus	ON		
Special Concern (1)					
Reptiles	Northern Rubber Boa	Charina bottae	BC		

THE COSEWIC SUMMARIES OF TERRESTRIAL SPECIES ELIGIBLE FOR ADDITION OR RECLASSIFICATION ON SCHEDULE 1

For a brief summary of the reasons for the COSEWIC status designation of individual species, and their biology, threats, distribution and other information, please consult:

www.registrelep-sararegistry.gc.ca/document/default_e.cfm?documentID=2972

For a more comprehensive explanation of the conservation status of an individual species, please refer to the COSEWIC status report for that species, also available on the Species at Risk Public Registry at:

www.sararegistry.gc.ca

or contact:

COSEWIC Secretariat c/o Canadian Wildlife Service Environment and Climate Change Canada Ottawa ON K1A 0H3

GLOSSARY

- **Aquatic species:** A wildlife species that is a fish as defined in section 2 of the *Fisheries Act* or a marine plant as defined in section 47 of the Act. The term includes marine mammals.
- Canada Gazette: The Canada Gazette is one of the vehicles that Canadians can use to access laws and regulations. It has been the "official newspaper" of the Government of Canada since 1841. Government departments and agencies as well as the private sector are required by law to publish certain information in the Canada Gazette. Notices and proposed regulations are published in the Canada Gazette, Part I, and official regulations are published in the Canada Gazette, Part II. For more information, please visit canadagazette. gc.ca.
- **Canadian Endangered Species Conservation Council:** The Council is made up of federal, provincial and territorial ministers with responsibilities for wildlife species. The Council's mandate is to provide national leadership and coordination for the protection of species at risk.
- **COSEWIC:** The Committee on the Status of Endangered Wildlife in Canada. The Committee comprises experts on wildlife species at risk. Their backgrounds are in the fields of biology, ecology, genetics, Indigenous traditional knowledge and other relevant fields. These experts come from various communities, including, among others, government and academia.
- **COSEWIC assessment:** COSEWIC's assessment or re-assessment of the status of a wildlife species, based on a status report on the species that COSEWIC either has had prepared or has received with an application.
- **Down-listing:** A revision of the status of a species on Schedule 1 to a status of lower risk. A revision of the status of a Schedule 1 species to a higher risk status would be up-listing.
- **Federal land:** Any land owned by the federal government, the internal waters and territorial sea of Canada, and reserves and other land set apart for the use and benefit of a band under the *Indian Act*.
- **Governor in Council:** The Governor General of Canada acting on the advice of the Queen's Privy Council for Canada, the formal executive body that gives legal effect to those decisions of Cabinet that are to have the force of law.
- **Individual:** An individual of a wildlife species, whether living or dead, at any developmental stage, and includes larvae, embryos, eggs, sperm, seeds, pollen, spores and asexual propagules.
- **Order:** An order issued by the Governor in Council, either on the basis of authority delegated by legislation or by virtue of the prerogative powers of the Crown.
- **Response statement:** A document in which the Minister of the Environment indicates how he or she intends to respond to the COSEWIC assessment of a wildlife species. A response statement is posted on the Species at Risk Public Registry within 90 days of receipt of the assessment by the Minister, and provides timelines for action to the extent possible.
- **RIAS:** Regulatory Impact Analysis Statement. A document that provides an analysis of the expected impact of a regulatory initiative and which accompanies an Order in Council.
- **Species at Risk Public Registry:** Developed as an online service, the Species at Risk Public Registry has been accessible to the public since proclamation of the *Species at Risk Act* (SARA). The website gives users easy access to documents and information related to SARA at any time and location with Internet access. It can be found at www.registrelep-sararegistry.gc.ca.
- **Schedule 1:** A schedule of SARA, also known as the List of Wildlife Species at Risk, which presents the list of species protected under SARA.

Up-listing: A revision of the status of a species on Schedule 1 to a status of higher risk. A revision of the status of a Schedule 1 species to a lower risk status would be down-listing.

Wildlife Management Board: Established under the land claims agreements in northern Quebec, Yukon, Northwest Territories, British Columbia and Nunavut, Wildlife Management Boards are the "main instruments of wildlife management" within their settlement areas. In this role, Wildlife Management Boards not only establish, modify and remove levels of total allowable harvest of a variety of wildlife species, but also participate in research activities, including annual harvest studies, and approve the designation of species at risk in their settlement areas.

Wildlife species: Under SARA, a species, subspecies, variety, or geographically or genetically distinct population of animal, plant or other organism, other than a bacterium or virus. To be eligible for inclusion under SARA, a wildlife species must be wild by nature and native to Canada. Non-native species that have been here for 50 years or more can be considered eligible if they came without human intervention.